SUBMITTED QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

 “DRAFT” SOLICITATION NO. DTFAWA-04-R-00002

The FAA posted an electronic announcement on August 3, 2004, under Request For Information – “DRAFT” SIR No. DTFAWA-04-R-00002, Command and Control Communications Program (C3) Communications Systems and Facility Modernization.  The questions received as a result of this announcement, were compiled and the pertinent answers are as follows:    

#1:  Paragraph 2 of the SOW related to maintenance response time of 2 hours, 24X7.  Please provide additional requirements, specificity of FAA need, and relationship to performance-based solutions, including service level agreements or other methods.  In particular, a true, 2 hour response in 650 locations scattered across the continental US will require an immense number of personnel and depot locations, presumably under the control of a single dispatch organization.  The companies who typically do this well/efficiently are large service focused organizations with national or international footprint - not something a small disadvantaged business has to offer.  The alternative, that of coordinating hundreds of small service delivery companies on a site by site basis, is not likely to produce acceptable response.

Maintenance will include 24 hour a day, 7 day a week support within 2 hours at all hours of the day within a 100 mile radius of the Baltimore-Washington metropolitan area.  C3 facilities are used for Continuity of Operations (COOP) purposes and will require support during periods of national, regional, and local emergency.  Support will also be required during COOP exercises and training.  These activities may take place away from the primary work location.  Nationwide maintenance will generally consist of providing program  office support for the management of service agreements developed with individual vendors as part of an initial equipment purchase

#2:  Would the FAA consider lifting the maximum dollar value restrictions

under the NAICS codes?

No, the FAA will not lift the maximum dollar value restrictions under the NAICS Codes.  The Small Business Administration establishes size standards, under 13CFR121,  “Small Business Size Regulations”.  

#3:  What will happen if a company graduates from the SEDB program during the

life of the contract?

A companies eligibility will continue through the performance period.  

#4:  After careful analysis of the draft SOW and marketplace, we recommend the FAA consider NOT making it an *(a) set aside.  Our overarching reason for this is that based on our analyses, we do not believe there are any 8(a)s that have the capabilities required for such a critical program and that the endemic risk would far outweigh the benefits of achieving FAA SBA 8(a) goals.  However, we do believe there is a sufficient number of small businesses (up to 500 employees) that could perform the majority of the required work, but only by teaming with the right provider (s) of telephony and the in-depth capability to provide information technology required for a program of this magnitude.  This should include 8(a)’s for a significant portion of the procurement, say 25%, which would still enable the FAA to meet SBA goals, yet mitigate the risk that an 8(a) prime would create.   We request that the FAA extend the potential respondent community for this procurement to include Small Business.  If FAA makes this determination, then would be interested in submitting an offer to support the FAA with this critical program.

The FAA received a sufficient number of responses from the 8(a) community, indicating an interest.  Based on the capability statements received, it can be assessed that there are a reasonable number of SEDB (8a) firms that possess the capability of performing a contract of this magnitude.  

 #5:  Section B:  Hardware, Software, Equipment included as CLIN 0022 includes an NTE of $700,000 per year.  Is the basis of this estimate related directly to the anticipated number of sites to be installed?  If so, please include a short overview of the estimated phasing of the implementation of the potential 600 sites in the SOW as related to the pricing model established in Section B.
Current C3 programs include: replacement of VHF-FM radio infrastructure and subscriber systems nationwide (approximately 900 locations); replacement of Autodin telecommunications systems with the Defense Messaging System (DMS) nationwide (approximately 40 locations); replacement of fixed and portable satellite telephone systems nationwide (approximately 140 locations); development and fielding of an internet based  Aviation Event Reporting System (AERS) which will allow immediate reporting and real-time collaboration of event response.   During the period of performance for this contract C3 plans to: replace and/or remove High Frequency (HF) radio systems nationwide (approximately 40 locations); modernization and enhancement of FAA Regional Operations Centers (ROCs) nationwide (approximately 11 locations); modernization and enhancement of FAA Emergency Operations Facilities (EOFs) nationwide (approximately 11 locations).  C3 is mandated to maintain awareness of current COTS available solutions which might be used to improve FAA Emergency Communications and readiness.  Consequently, there will likely be communications systems commercially developed during the period of performance on this contract which C3 cannot describe for the purposes of this solicitation that will be fielded during the course of the contract.  The NTE $700,000 is an estimate of the cost of equipment which may be purchased through this contract.  

Independent contracts have already been placed for VHF-FM equipment purchase, DMS replacement, and fixed satellite replacement.  They are described here as examples of the type of work C3 efforts and as examples of the areas in which the successful bidder may provide oversight of another contractor as specified in schedule C.  The successful bidder will be providing engineering support, site survey, site preparation, and installation work for VHF-FM and may be asked to perform similar services for products that are provided by the government through other contract mechanisms.

#6:  Travel estimates included as CLIN 0023 include an NTE of $200,000 per year.  Is the basis of this estimate related directly to the anticipated number of sites to be installed?  If so, please include a short overview of the estimated phasing of the implementation of the potential 600 sites in the SOW as related to the pricing model established in Section B.  

See answer to  #5 above.  VHF-FM systems will be prepared and installed at a relatively even rate over the course of the contract.  

#7:  Section C: Paragraph 1, line 4.  "The Contractor will be providing telephony and information technology equipment":  Will the FAA provide specifications and performance requirements for this equipment as part of the Final SIR?
The contractor will be providing engineering support to C3 for the purpose of proposing the best solution to technological problems.  As specified in schedule C, the contractor may provide the equipment as well.

#8:  Paragraph 2 of the SOW Scope of Work references the Continuity of Operations (COOP).  Will this COOP plan be made available to bidders as part of the final SIR materials released?  The related documents section traditionally included in FAA procurements is not provided with this draft SIR, will these reference materials be included in the Final SIR.

The FAA will not release its COOP plan to bidders. 

#9:  Facility Modernization/Equipment Installation:  This section includes a reference to digital voice recorders.  Will the successful bidder purchase and install these devices or install devices purchased by the FAA under an existing contract?

The FAA may provide this equipment or have the contractor provide it as specified in schedule C. 

#10:  Requirements:  Will this section be significantly modified to include additional performance requirements, schedule information, or other considerations in addition to the requirements for personnel?

It has been modified to provide examples of ongoing C3 program efforts and to describe the types of equipment the C3 purchases.

#11:  Tasks:  Those specific work areas described under this heading do not appear to be specifically mapped to the evaluation criteria.  There appears to be no direct mapping between the performance areas included in the specific task descriptions and Section L & M, especially in the area of past performance qualifications.  Will this be clarified in the final SIR?

The evaluation criteria has been modified.

#12:  Material/Asset Management:  Will the FAA provide a list of GFE and GFF with the final SIR?

See Q&A #5 above.  This language is also included in the SIR.

#13:  Design and Implementation of KM/KS Solutions:  Does the FAA envision that the successful bidder will already have in place a Network Operations Center (NOC) capability for the conduct of this task?

The FAA already has a KM/KS platform in place.  The successful bidder will be providing software design and implementation solutions to C3.

#14:  Training:  Will the FAA provide the bidders with the list of FAA-specific training orders and requirements, or will bidders use best-commercial and COTS training materials for conduct of training?

Best commercial practices and materials will be used in most cases.  Where the FAA requires FAA specific training, it will be provided on a time and materials basis.

#15:  Testing:  Will the FAA provide bidders with the list of test requirements, orders, guidelines for traditional FAA test procedures or will bidders be required to offer best commercial practices or COTS testing procedures, methods, and processes?

Best commercial practices will be used in most cases.  Where the FAA requires FAA specific testing, it will be provided on a time and materials basis.

#16:  Quality Control:  There is no requirement for ISO or CMM in this draft SIR.  Will the FAA include this requirement in the final SIR?

There is no ISO or CMM requirement.  Past performance is an evaluation criterion.

#17:  Based upon the SOW and related deliverables, performance areas, and other requirements, it appears that this procurement could also be made through the FAA’s Future Telecommunications Infrastructure (FTI) contract.  What are the unique/specific requirements or rationale for a separate procurement for the C3 program?

The C3 program works in concert with the FTI program and utilizes those services where appropriate. 

#18:  Will the FAA include a more detailed concept of operations description in the final SIR?

The SIR has been modified to provide more detailed information.

#19:  Will the FAA include a schedule for the procurement and an implementation schedule with the final SIR?

See Q&A #5 and #6 above.  This language is also included in the SIR.

#20:  a. The NAICS code referred to in the attached message is perhaps wrong.

The correct NAICS code for Construction is 236210, Building alterations, nonresidential, commercial and institutional buildings, general construction.
b. The NAICS codes limits for IT are $21M , the building modification code is $28M max. We feel these codes/limitations are too restrictive. As a certified 8(a) we respectfully request the earnings limits be raised to $28M or eliminated but that the 8(a) requirement be retained.  

The Small Business Administration establishes size standards, calculates annual receipts, defines business concern, calculates number of employees, determine a concern’s primary industry and the penalties for misrepresentation of size status.  The NAICS code assigned to a procurement and its corresponding size standard is final unless timely appealed to SBA’s Office of Hearings.  Procedures for Size Protests and Request for Formal Size Determinations are set forth in 13 C.F.R 121. 
c. We would like to see the fact we have been pre-qualified by the FAA under other IT services vehicles (and as an 8(a)) qualify us to bid on this opportunity.  

Each contract is a separate and individual document, with different requirements. Documented proof of pre-qualification may be submitted for consideration.  However, it is strongly encouraged to follow the procedures for submission of proposals as set forth in Section L.  Non-adherence to proposal instructions, may be considered incomplete, inadequate, etc., and may not receive further consideration at the government’s discretion.  

d. Perhaps additional language stating that "a company also qualifies if it meets these NAICS codes or is currently certified as an SEDB 8(a) by the FAA under the BITS II or other contract vehicle for similar IT services" could be included.

See Q&A #20d.
#21:  Are there educational and/or experience requirements for each labor category in the draft proposal? 

No.

#22:  Is FAA experience better than private industry experience? 

No.

#23:  Can experience substitute for education?

N/A

Note:  Any subsequent changes to the “Final” SIR will be issued via Amendment and electronically posted. 
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